
 
 

 

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for Public 
Health and Inequalities 
 

Tuesday, 16 September 2025 at 1.30 pm 

Online 
 
If you wish to view proceedings, please click on this Live Stream Link. 

However, that will not allow you to participate in the meeting. 
 

Items for Decision 
 
The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed 

overleaf, with indicative timings, and the related reports are attached.  Decisions taken 
will become effective at the end of the working day on Friday, 19 September 2025 unless 

called in by that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council. 

 

These proceedings are open to the public 
 

 
Martin Reeves 
Chief Executive 

September 2025 
 

Committee Officer: Email: 
committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

 

Note:  Date of next meeting: 7 October 2025 

 
 
 

 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
 

https://oxon.cc/DDCMPHI160920225


Page 2  
 

 

 

Items for Decision 
 

1. Declarations of Interest  
 

See guidance below. 
 

2. Questions from County Councillors  

 
Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two working 

days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the Cabinet 
Member’s delegated powers.  

 
The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one meeting is 
limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary question at the meeting) 

and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in total. As with questions at 
Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the end of this item will receive a 

written response.  
 
Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and will be 

the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such other councillor 
or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member, and shall not be the subject of further 

debate at this meeting. Questions received after the despatch of the agenda, but before 
the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of Addenda circulated at the meeting, 
together with any written response which is available at that time. 

 

3. Petitions and Public Address  

 
Members of the public who wish to speak on an item on the agenda at this meeting, or 
present a petition, can attend the meeting in person or ‘virtually’ through an online 

connection.  
 

Requests to present a petition must be submitted no later than 9am ten working days 
before the meeting.  
 

Requests to speak must be submitted no later than 9am three working days before the 
meeting.  

 
Requests should be submitted to committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk  
 

If you are speaking ‘virtually’, you may submit a written statement of your presentation to 
ensure that if the technology fails, then your views can still be taken into account. A 

written copy of your statement can be provided no later than 9am on the day of the 
meeting. Written submissions should be no longer than 1 A4 sheet. 
 

4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 4) 

 

The Cabinet Member is asked to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 3 June 
2025 and to receive information arising from them. 

 

mailto:committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk


Page 3  
 

 

The Cabinet Member is also asked to approve the minutes of the meeting ‘Delegated 
Decisions by the Cabinet Member for Public Health, Inequalities & Community Safety’ 

held on 4 March 2025 and to receive information arising from them.  
 

5. Detoxification and Residential Rehabilitation Services for Adults 
with Problematic Substance Use – Dynamic Approved Provider 
List (DAPL) (Pages 5 - 10) 

 
Cabinet Member: Public Health, Inequalities and Community Safety 

Forward Plan Ref: 2025/085 
Contact: Aimee Petrie, Health Improvement Practitioner 

Aimee.petrie@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 
Report by Director of Public Health and Communities 

 
The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to approve the contract extensions for 

the Detoxification and Residential Rehabilitation Services for Adults with 
Problematic Substance Use-Dynamic Approved Provider List (DAPL), provided by 
the providers appointed onto the DAPL, for a period of 2 years as allowed for in 

the original contracts. 
 

6. Oxfordshire Domestic Abuse Service Contract Extension (Pages 11 

- 16) 
 

Cabinet Member: Public Health, Inequalities and Community Safety 
Forward Plan Ref: 2025/046 

Contact: Serena Abel, Public Health Principal 
Serena.abel@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Report by Director of Public Health and Communities 
 
The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to approve the recommendation to 
extend the Oxfordshire Domestic Abuse Service (ODAS) contract for 2 years until 
March 2028. 

 

 

mailto:Serena.abel@oxfordshire.gov.uk


Page 2  
 

 

 

Councillors declaring interests  
 

General duty  

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item 

on the agenda headed ‘Declarations of Interest’ or as soon as it becomes apparent to 

you.  

 

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?  

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your employment; sponsorship (i.e. payment for 

expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your 

election expenses); contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the 

Council’s area; corporate tenancies; and securities. These declarations must be 

recorded in each councillor’s Register of Interests which is publicly available on the 

Council’s website.  

 

Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member 

her or himself but also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with 

as husband or wife or as if they were civil partners. 

 

Declaring an interest  

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a 

meeting, you must declare that you have an interest. You should also disclose the nature 

as well as the existence of the interest. If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after 

having declared it at the meeting you must not participate in discussion or voting on the 

item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.  

 

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception  

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code 

of Conduct says that a member ‘must serve only the public interest and must never 

improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself’ and 

that ‘you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be 

questioned’.  

 

Members Code – Other registrable interests  

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or 

wellbeing of one of your other registerable interests then you must declare an  interest. 

You must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and you must withdraw from 

the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.  

 

Wellbeing can be described as a condition of contentedness, healthiness and happiness; 

anything that could be said to affect a person’s quality of life, either positively or 

negatively, is likely to affect their wellbeing. 

Other registrable interests include:  

a) Any unpaid directorships 



Page 3  
 

 

b) Any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or 

management and to which you are nominated or appointed by your authority. 

c) Any body (i) exercising functions of a public nature (ii) directed to charitable 

purposes or (iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public 

opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a 

member or in a position of general control or management. 

 

Members Code – Non-registrable interests  

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or 

wellbeing (and does not fall under disclosable pecuniary interests), or the financial 

interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate, you must declare the interest.  

 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects your own financial interest or wellbeing, 

a financial interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate or a financial interest or 

wellbeing of a body included under other registrable interests, then you must declare the 

interest.  

 

In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after disclosing your 

interest the following test should be applied:  

Where a matter affects the financial interest or well-being:  

a) to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of 

inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;  

b) a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it 

would affect your view of the wider public interest. 

 

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at 

the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter 

and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

DELEGATED DECISIONS BY CABINET MEMBER FOR PUBLIC HEALTH 
AND INEQUALITIES 

 
MINUTES of the meeting held on Tuesday, 3 June 2025 commencing at 1.05 pm and 

finishing at 1.10 pm. 
 
Present: 

 
 

Voting Members: Councillor Kate Gregory – in the Chair 

 
Officers: 

 
Jack Nicholson (Democratic Services) 

Habibula, Shakiba (Consultant in Public Health) 
 

The Cabinet Member considered the matters, reports and recommendations 

contained or referred to in the agenda for the meeting and agreed as set out below. 
Copies of the agenda and reports are attached to the signed Minutes. 

 

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
(Agenda No. 1) 
 

There were no declarations of interest.  
 

2 QUESTIONS FROM COUNTY COUNCILLORS  
(Agenda No. 2) 
 
There were no questions from County Councillors. 

 

3 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS  
(Agenda No. 3) 
 

There were none.  
 

4 DYNAMIC APPROVED PROVIDER LIST AGREEMENT, PRIMARY CARE, 
ONE YEAR EXTENSION.  
(Agenda No. 4) 

 
The Cabinet Member approved the recommendations.  

 
RESOLVED to:  
 

a) approve the extension of commissioned contracts and call-off contracts 
related to the Primary Care Dynamic Approved Provider List Agreement 

(DAPL) for the provision of Long Acting Reversible Contraception, NHS 
Health Checks, and Drug Use Shared Care services by Primary Care for a 
period of one year from 1 April 2026 to 31 March 2027; and  

 
b) delegate authority to the Director of Public Health in consultation with 

the Head of Legal and Deputy Monitoring Officer and s.151 Officer to 
extend the current DAPL contracts and associated call-off contracts for 
12 months from 1st April 2026. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 
 in the Chair 

  

Date of signing  2025 

 

 
 
 

Page 2



 

DELEGATED DECISIONS BY CABINET MEMBER FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, 
INEQUALITIES & COMMUNITY SAFETY 

 
MINUTES of the meeting held on Tuesday, 4 March 2025 commencing at 1.00 pm 

and finishing at 1.10 pm. 
 
Present: 

 
 

Voting Members: Cllr Nathan Ley – in the Chair  
  
Other Members in 

Attendance: 
 

Jack Nicholson, Democratic Services  

Kate Eveleigh, Public Health and Communities  
David Munday, Public Health and Communities 

 

The Cabinet Member considered the matters, reports and recommendations 
contained or referred to in the agenda for the meeting and agreed as set out below.  

Copies of the agenda and reports are attached to the signed Minutes. 
 

27/25 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
(Agenda No. 1) 

 
There were no declarations of interest. 

 

28/25 QUESTIONS FROM COUNTY COUNCILLORS  
(Agenda No. 2) 
 

There were no questions from County Councillors. 
 

29/25 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS  
(Agenda No. 3) 

 
There were none. 

 

30/25 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
(Agenda No. 4) 
 

The Chair approved the minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2025 as an 
accurate record of proceedings. 

 

31/25 APPROVAL OF CONTRACT EXTENSION TO HOUSING SINGLE POINT OF 

CONTACT CONTRACT - BETTER HOUSING, BETTER HEALTH  
(Agenda No. 5) 
 

The Chair congratulated officers on the savings that had been made and approved 
the recommendation.  
 
RESOLVED to authorise the extension of the Better Housing Better Health 
contract for two years from 28 October 2025 to 28 October 2027. 

 

Page 3



 

 

 
 
 in the Chair 

  
Date of signing  2025 

 
 
 

 

Page 4



 

   

V2.0 Nov 2024 

 

DELEGATED DECISION BY CABINET MEMBER FOR PUBLIC 
HEALTH AND INEQUALITIES 

                          16th September 2025 

 

DETOXIFICATION AND RESIDENTIAL REHABILITATION SERVICES  
FOR ADULTS WITH PROBLEMATIC SUBSTANCE USE – DYNAMIC 

APPROVED PROVIDER LIST (DAPL)  

Recommendation 

 
The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to: 

 

a) Approve the contract extensions for the Detoxification and Residential 
Rehabilitation Services for Adults with Problematic Substance Use-

Dynamic Approved Provider List (DAPL), provided by the providers 
appointed onto the DAPL, for a period of 2 years as allowed for in the 
original contracts. 

Executive Summary 

 

1. Detoxification and Residential Rehabilitation Services for Adults with Problematic 
Substance Use, are provided by 17 providers across the United Kingdom. Each 
provider has passed the Council’s governance and insurance criteria via a 

procurement in 2021, to be awarded a DAPL contract to provide these services 
for Oxfordshire residents.  

 
2. The current four-year contract ends on 30 April 2026.  A decision on enacting the 

extension option in the contract must be made before 31 January 2026. The 

recommended two-year extension period would commence on 01 May 2026 unti l 
30 April 2028. 

 
3. Funding for these placements comes from Public Heath (PH) and a small 

contribution from external grants. The contract value across all 17 providers is 

anticipated  to be circa £1,013,000 per annum in total. 
 

Background 

 
4. The aim of residential detoxification and rehabilitation services is to provide 

comprehensive clinical detoxification treatment and/or rehabilitation for highly 
vulnerable people with complex substance use issues who are unable to achieve 

abstinence in the community, due to complex physical or mental health needs, 
entrenched behaviours or complexities in their social circumstances. 

 

5. Placements made under the DAPL are funded by the Public Health Grant, a 
small allocation from external grants, Rough Sleeping Drug and Alcohol 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



   

 

   

 

Treatment Grant (RSDATG), the Supplementary Substance Use Treatment and 
Recovery Grant (SSMTRG), and Adult Social Care (ASC).  
 

6. Our community alcohol and drug treatment service supports many individuals, 
but those with complex health issues or challenging social circumstances may 

require residential treatment to prevent harm. 
 
Service delivery 

 
7. Residential detoxification provides medical support for safe withdrawal from 

 substances, while rehabilitation focuses on addressing underlying issues and 
 developing strategies for long-term recovery through counselling, education, 
 and support. Placements are usually between 2-4 weeks for detoxification and 

 12 weeks for rehabilitation. 
 

8. The DAPL comprises 17 providers which offer different styles of 
detoxification/rehabilitation programmes in a range of geographical locations 
predominately outside of Oxfordshire. This allows for the placement of people on 

a basis that supports individual needs and preferences, increasing the likelihood 
of successful completion.  

 
9. Public Health implements a comprehensive monitoring and quality assurance 

framework, including on-site provider visits, to ensure that all services for this 

complex group are delivered to contractual standards and are registered with 
and overseen by the relevant national care quality bodies in England, Wales, or 
Scotland. 

 

Benefits of Extension 

 

10. Extending the contract ensures continuity of service for community alcohol and 
drug services, maintains high-quality service delivery, avoids disruption for 
people accessing residential treatment, and supports the Council's strategic 

aims of protecting vulnerable residents and improving health outcomes. 
 

11. Prices for placements are fixed under the DAPL. Extending the contract is the 
most cost-effective option for the Council as it fixes pricing at the 2025-2026 
level with any uplifts being at the discretion of the Council.  

 
Business need 

 
12. The Council is responsible for providing residential services as part of an 

effective alcohol and drug treatment system, and in line with the OHID Drug and 

Alcohol Treatment and Recovery Improvement Grant, is expected to send at 
least 2% of the treatment population to residential rehabilitation treatment. 

 
Strategic Alignment  

 

Page 6



   

 

   

 

13. Provision of an alcohol and drug service, and DAPL services are aligned with 
the Oxfordshire County Council Strategic Plan 2023-20251 by tackling 
inequalities in Oxfordshire and prioritising the health and wellbeing of residents, 

as well as the Oxfordshire Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2024-20302 by 
reducing the impact of ill-health through provision of alcohol advice and 

treatment.  
 
14. Extending the DAPL contract enables delivery of enhanced substance use 

support to vulnerable populations, in line with the 10-year national alcohol and 
drug strategy ‘From Harm to Hope’, and meets local strategic priorities overseen 

by the Oxfordshire Combating Drugs Partnership of reducing drug and alcohol 
related deaths and increasing the number of people in effective treatment and 
becoming drug free. 

 
Financial Implications 

 
15. The extension term recommended is 24 months.  At the current funding level, the 

total value of the extension would be circa £2,026,000 for the full 24months. 

 
16. This would be expected to be funded as previously done by the Public Health 

Funds and externals grants as outlined in the Background section - point 7 if they 
are confirmed beyond 2025-26. Additional funding, if needed, will come from 
Public Health underspends in-year. 

 
Comments checked by:  
Emma Percival, Assistant Finance Business Partner 

emma.percival@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Legal Implications 

 
17. The Council has the statutory power to undertake the substance use services 

delivered by this contract under section 12 of the Health and Social Care Act 
2012.   

 
18. The Council has the right within the DAPL contracts to extend the term for up to 

24 months upon 3 months’ written notice upon the same terms and conditions 

and has the right to terminate the DAPL contracts at any time upon 6 months’ 
written notice.  

 
Comments checked by: 
Donna Creffield, Contracts Lawyer 

donna.creffield@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 
Staff Implications 

 
19. The Live Well Improve and Enable Substance Use Team within the Public Health 

and Community Safety Directorate will continue to performance manage the 
contract. 

                                                 
1 Oxfordshire County Council - Our strategic plan 2023-2025 
2 Oxfordshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2024-2030 

Page 7

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/from-harm-to-hope-a-10-year-drugs-plan-to-cut-crime-and-save-lives/from-harm-to-hope-a-10-year-drugs-plan-to-cut-crime-and-save-lives
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/council/our-vision-0
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/constitution/oxfordshirejointhwbstrategy.pdf


   

 

   

 

 
Equality & Inclusion Implications 

 

20. Issues with substance use are not equally distributed within the population. 
Strong links exist between deprivation, adverse childhood experiences and 

substance use, with increased risk of poor outcomes borne by vulnerable 
populations such as people who are homeless, sex-workers and those in contact 
with the criminal justice system. This service addresses the wider determinants 

of health, identified in regular needs assessments, by targeting services and 
aiming to ensure equality of access.  They provide non-judgmental and 

accessible psychosocial and clinical services across Oxfordshire, engaging 
vulnerable groups and those not currently accessing services through targeted 
assertive outreach and engagement activities to ensure improved outcomes for 

these populations. 
 

21. An Equalities Impact Assessment for the service was completed in July 2025. 
 

22. A Climate Impact Assessment Summary was completed in July 2025;  a full 

Climate Impact Assessment is not required for this service. 
 

Risk Management 

 
23.  
Risk Impact Likelihood Mitigation 

Letting contract 
naturally expire and 

not re-procuring the 
contract  

vulnerable people may find it 
difficult or impossible to access 

appropriate support to become 
substance free; potential for 
loss of income, increase in 

debt, reduction in wellbeing, 
and risk of significant harm 

Medium Continue to provide DAPL services 
and progress proposed contract 

extension 

Activity based 
contract, so there is 

the risk of an 
increase in demand 
and costs beyond 

estimated amounts 

insufficient funds to meet 
demands. 

Low  Continued monitoring of the Contract 
spend over the course of the 

extension period to forecast any 
significant increase in cost and plan to 
address this, . 

Some providers 
choose to end their 
contract with the 

Council rather than 
enter into an 
extension 
 

Possible gaps in service 
delivery in some areas 
 

Possible impact on partners 
and other Service Providers 

Medium Extend current contract in a timely 
manner and communicate to all 
existing providers. 
 
The DAPL is an open agreement, so 
new providers can be encouraged to 

apply to deliver services DAPL,  
 
Working closely with continuing 

providers to ensure they can provide 
the capacity of services required. 

Budgetary 
reductions during 

extension period 

Insufficient funds to meet 
demand 

Low  The service contract includes, as a 
safeguard, a provision entitling the 

Council to terminate the purchasing 
terms or reduce the services, on 
written notice to the Service 

Providers, where the Council’s 
funding is reduced. 

Page 8



   

 

   

 

 
Key Dates / Next Steps 

 

24. The current contract expires on 30 April 2026. 
 

25. Should extension of the current contract be approved, the contract requires a 3-
month Extension Notice Period, which would therefore be required by 31 
January 2026. 

 
Ansaf Azhar 

Director Public Health and Communities  
                      
Background papers:  

Nil 
 
Contact Officer:  

 
Sam Read, Public Health Programme Manager – Alcohol and Drugs 

                   Live Well Improve and Enable Team 
sam.read@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 
  
August 2025 

 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

DELEGATED DECISIONS BY CABINET MEMBER FOR PUBLIC 
HEALTH AND INEQUALITIES  

  

                                16th September 2025 
 

Oxfordshire Domestic Abuse Service (ODAS) Contract Extension 
 

Report by the Director of Public Health and Communities 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to: 

 
a) Approve the recommendation to extend the Oxfordshire Domestic 

Abuse Service (ODAS) contract for 2 years until March 2028. 

Executive Summary 

 

1. The ODAS contract commencing in April 2023 has been instrumental in providing 
critical safe accommodation support to victims of domestic abuse, fulfilling the  

statutory reuirements of the Domestic Abuse Act 2021. The current contract is due 
to end in March 2026. The service has consistently achieved its key performance 
indicators (KPIs), demonstrating its effectiveness and impact. There is opportunity 

to extend the contract by up to two years.  
 

2. The cabinet member is recommended to agree to extending the ODAS contract for 
an additional two years, until March 2028. This extension will ensure the continued 
provision of essential services to those in need in Oxfordshire, ensuring access to 

the nesessary resources to escape abusive situations and build a safer future. 

Background 

 
3. The Domestic Abuse Act 2021 requires local authorities in England to ensure 

provision of safe accommodation and tailored support for victim-survivors of 

domestic abuse, including children. This includes assessing needs and 
developing inclusive, effective strategies.  

 
4. In response, ODAS was commissioned and jointly funded by Oxfordshire County 

Council and each District Council in Oxfordshire in 2023. Delivered by 

A2Dominion, it supports the Council in meeting its legal duties by providing 
inclusive, accessible, trauma-informed support to help victim-survivors escape 

abuse and rebuild their lives.  
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



   

 

   

 

5. The service submits annual reports to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government (MHCLG) to evidence local provision, and the services 
performance is monitored through regular contract monitoring.  

 
6. Established on the 2024 Crime Survey, an estimated 29,553 people in 

Oxfordshire experience domestic abuse in 2023. ODAS addresses this through 
provision of: 

 

a. Emergency refuge and dispersed housing 
b. Outreach and helpline services 

c. Specialist support for children and young people 
d. Services for marginalise groups, including sex workers and those with 

insecure immigration status 

 
7. The ODAS is fundamental to delivery of the Oxfordshire Domestic Abuse Safe 

Accommodation Strategy 2025-2028, ensuring a coordinated, responsive 
approach. 

 

Key issues 
 

8. Compliance with statutory duties: There is a need to extend the ODAS contract to 
comply with the Councils duties to provide safe accommodation to victim-survivors 
of domestic abuse under the Domestic Abuse Act 2021. This act mandates local 

services to ensure victim-survivors can remain safe in their own homes or access 
alternative safe accommodation and specialist support. 

 
9. Financial Partnering Agreement: Each District council has agreed to continue 

financial contributions for the contract extension duration ensuring all parties are 

committed to continuing their financial support for the services provided under the 
contract. 

 
10. Domestic Abuse Grant: The Domestic Abuse grant is now provided within the core 

Council settlement annually. This financial stability is crucial for the continued 

services provided to victim-survivors. 
 

11. Alignment with Strategies: Extending the ODAS service underpins the current 
Oxfordshire domestic abuse safe accommodation strategy 2025-2028 
recommendations. The overarching Oxfordshire domestic abuse strategy and 

health needs assessment are being reviewed and updated in 2025. This provides 
an opportunity to add amendments to the existing ODAS contract or create 

additional contracts if necessary to meet the needs of the population. 

Corporate Policies and Priorities 

 

12.The recommendation to extend the ODAS contract fit within the Council’s    
     strategic direction, values and principles as outlined in “Thriving Communities for    

     Everyone in Oxfordshire.” This includes a vision to help people live healthy lives   
      and provide access to services that can enhance the quality of life in our   
      communities. 

 

Page 12



   

 

   

 

13. Vision: The recommended contract extension supports the vision of a thriving, 

sustainable, and inclusive community by ensuring victim-survivors have access 
to safe accommodation, enhancing their quality of life. 

 

14. Values: The recommended contract extension embodies the values of integrity, 

accountability, and collaboration by addressing statutory responsibilities to 
support victim-survivors of domestic abuse in Oxfordshire.  

 

15. Objectives: The recommended contract extension contributes to improving public 

health, social welfare, and community safety by providing a secure environment 

for victim-survivors to recover and rebuild their lives and reduce immediate 
threats to safety. 

 

16. Strategic Priorities: The recommended contract extension aligns with priorities of 

sustainability, innovation, and inclusivity by proposing sustainable temporary 

housing solutions to domestic abuse and ensuring support for the most 
vulnerable community members. 

Financial Implications 

 
17. The cost of the recommended 2-year contract extension will continue to be 

funded jointly by the Council and each District Council in Oxfordshire.  
 

18. The Councils contribution is £610,382 per annum. MHCLG Domestic Abuse grant 

funding will be used to deliver the Councils financial contribution. 
 

Comments checked by: 
 
Emma Percival, Assistant Finance Business Partner, 

emma.percival@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Procurement Implications 
 
19. The ODAS contract has the unilateral right for the Council to extend the 

agreement on the same terms and conditions, on a minimum of 6 months written 
notice. As the extension is built into the existing contract terms, there is no need 

to modify the agreement to enact the extension, provided the notice requirement 
is met.   

  

20. Therefore, there are no procurement implications associated with extending this 
contract.  

 
 Comments checked by: Alex White (Procurement Category Manager – Public    
 Health)  

 Alex.White@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Legal Implications 

 

Page 13



   

 

   

 

21. Under the Domestic Abuse Act 2021 the council is required to provide safe 
accommodation and tailored support for victim-survivors of domestic abuse, 
including children. This includes assessing needs and developing inclusive, 

effective strategies. 
 

22. The existing contract for ODAS was procured under the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 (PCR) and any modifications to the contract are regulated by 
the PCR. The option to extend was clearly and unequivocally provided for in the 

procurement documents and it is therefore permissible for the council to extend 
the contract for up to 2 years.  

 
Comments checked/added/amended by: Jayne Pringle, Head of Law and LBP – 
Contracts & Conveyancing  

Jayne.pringle@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Staff Implications 

 
23. The recommendation to extend the existing contract for two years creates no new 

or additional implications. 

Equality & Inclusion Implications 

 

24. This is not a new service. The ECIA implications are the same as for the current 
service. 

Sustainability Implications 

 
25. The recommendation to extend the existing contract for two years creates no new 

or additional implications. 
 

Risk Management 

 
Risk Mitigation 

1. Reduction to Domestic Abuse 
Grant funding received as part of 

settlement. 

The Council’s option to reduce or 
terminate services through written notice 

if funding is cut significantly mitigates 
any financial risk.  

2. A two-year extension means The 

Council may not be able to take 
advantage of potentially better 

offers from other providers in the 
nearer term. 

The Council received one tender in late 

2022 for this service, meaning this risk 
is unlikely to materialise. The Council 

will conduct regular market 
assessments and benchmarking 
exercises to ensure the incumbent 

provider remains competitive. This can 
also inform future commissioning 

decisions. 

3. Timelines for the service retender 
option do not align with the health 

By extending the contract, the council 
can make recommendations and 

Page 14



   

 

   

 

needs assessment update and 

overarching strategy refresh 
taking place in 2025, meaning 
recommendations would not be 

included into a new specification 
before going to market. 

enhance delivery based on the findings 

from the needs assessment and 
strategy within the current contract and 
financial scope available.  

 

Consultations 

 

26. This recommendation has not been publicly consulted on. District Councils have 
been consulted as joint commissioners of the service. 

  
Contact Officer:  

Serena Abel 

Interim Head of Public Health Programmes & Public Health Principal (Domestic Abuse) 
Email: Serena.Abel@oxfordshire.gov.uk | m: 07519702430 
 

Ansaf Azhar  
Director of Public Health and Communities 

 
September 2025 
 

 
 
 

Page 15

mailto:Serena.Abel@oxfordshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Printed minutes 04032025
	Minutes


	5 Detoxification and Residential Rehabilitation Services for Adults with Problematic Substance Use – Dynamic Approved Provider List (DAPL)
	6 Oxfordshire Domestic Abuse Service Contract Extension

